
 
AGENDA 

 
STEERING COMMITTEE  

for Implementation of the 2025 Strategic Plan for Online Education 
Virtual Meeting 

February 19, 2021 
1:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m. 

 
Chair:  Ralph Wilcox; Vice Chair: Bret Danilowicz 

Members: Ellenberg, Furton, Glover, McKee (non  B



STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA 
STEERING COMMITTEE 

SUS 2025 Strategic Plan for Online Education 
February 19, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Call to Order and Opening Remarks



2/19/21 

Steering Committee 
Work Plan for 2021 

2021 Meeting 
Dates Steering Committee Innovation and Online Committee 

November 18, 
2020 

Instruction and Learning in a Post-
Pandemic World:  Lessons Learning from 
COVID-19 



mailto:jksmith@ufl.edu


STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA 
STEERING COMMITTEE 

SUS 2025 Strategic Plan for Online Education 
February 19, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Approval of Minutes 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

PROPOSED STEERING COMMITTEE ACTION 

Consider approval of the minutes of the Steering Committee meeting and of the 



MINUTES  
STEERING COMMITTEE FOR THE  

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 2025 STRATEGIC PLAN FOR ONLINE EDUCATION 
Virtual Meeting 

November 18, 2020 

1. Call to Order and Opening Remarks

Chair Ralph Wilcox convened the meeting at 11:03 a.m. on November 18, 2020, with the following 
 ( )]TJ 021.7 (EE F)3.5 (O)10.8.8  







                                                    

1 
 

MINUTES 
Provosts 

Innovations in Instruction and Learning in a Post-COVID World in the SUS 
Virtual Meeting 

November 18, 2020 
 

Chair Ralph Wilcox convened the meeting at 12:15 p.m. on November 18, 2020, with the following 
provosts present:  Bret Danilowicz, Maurice Edington, George Ellenberg, Ken Furton (joining later), Joe 
Glover, Michael Johnson, Jim Llorens, and Sally McRorie.   

Other attendees were incoming FGCU provost Mark Rieger, Associate Vice Chancellor Nancy McKee, and 
distance learning leaders on the SUS Implementation Committee: Tom Cavanagh (UCF), Cindy DeLuca 
(USF), Tom Dvorske (Polytech), Franzetta Fitz (FAMU), Robby Fuselier (FSU), Julie Golden-Botti (FAU), 
Michelle Horton (UWF), Andy McCollough (UF), Deb Miller (UNF), Lia Prevolis (FIU), and Aysegul Timur 
representing Paul Snyder (FGCU). Also in attendance were Kelvin Thompson (UCF) Jennifer Smith (UF), 
and Robert Seniors (FAMU). 

Provost Wilcox facilitated a discussion regarding the role of technology and innovation in teaching and 
learning across the SUS in a post-COVID-19 world. He indicated the need to reflect on how COVID-19 
experiences will affect the future of higher education in the SUS and referred to the questions below that 
were in the agenda packet for the Steering Committee: 

• What inherent limitations and weaknesses, and potential opportunities has the global pandemic 
revealed in higher education?   

• What "best practices" have emerged and what are the most significant "lessons learned" with 
relevance to the future state of higher education delivery across the SUS? 

• What might the "new normal" look like in higher education, post COVID-19, and what 
innovations are most likely going to gain traction and sustain in the mid- to long-term? 

• What have emerged as the greatest deficits in higher education over the past eight months and 
how successful have we been in compensating through the use of technology? 

• Please review the 2025 SUS Strategic Plan for Online Education and consider its relevance in a 
post COVID-19 world. 

• How can the 12 SUS institutions collaborate more effectively in anticipation of a potential 
paradigm shift in higher education? 

Chair Wilcox encouraged provosts to be giving thought to policies and regulations in the context of those 
experiences and to consider ways in which institutions can collaborate more collectively. 

Issues identified during the meeting were: 

1. Digital Divide for students of limited economic means 
 Provost Johnson indicated the digital divide for students of limited economic means was 

the biggest flaw in the attainment of higher education. 
 Chair Wilcox indicated that Governor Levine had raised this issue in the past. There is a 

geographic divide, as well as a socio-economic divide. 
 Provost Ellenberg said there is a lack of access to both technology and bandwidth.  UWF 

purchased a lot of laptops for students. 
2. Professional Development for faculty 
 Chair Wilcox mentioned USF had to invest in professional development for faculty who 

struggled with online teaching. 

9



2 

 Provost Edington said “investment” is the right word. FAMU had to identify resources that 
could be re-allocated for professional development. Professional development cannot be
stopped, because things keep changing. FAMU is trying to adopt HyFlex courses now.

3. Student Mental Health
 Chair Wilcox stated that COVID-19 is one event, but it will not be the last.  There is a deficit 

in the understanding of students struggling – their anxiety and stress levels during this
time.

4. Dependence on Auxiliary Services
 Provost Danilowicz found the McKinsey article to be helpful, especially the section on the

dependence on auxiliary services.  Will institutions find ten years from now that they have 
overbuilt campuses and have a problem with deferred maintenance?
 Chair Wilcox agreed there should be a focus on auxiliaries – housing, food services,

athletics, parking.  He said students are preferring to pay for daily parking at USF, rather
than paying for parking for the term.

5. Sense of Community




STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA 
STEERING COMMITTEE 

SUS 2025 Strategic Plan for Online Education 
February 19, 2021 

SUBJECT:  2025 Strategic Plan for Online Education: Recommendations for the Post-
COVID World 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

PROPOSED STEERING COMMITTEE ACTION 

For Discussion/Approval 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The 2025 Strategic Plan for Online Education contains 49 tactics, specific initiatives 
designed to help reach the Plan’s goals. The Steering Committee will consider 
recommendations for continuing, discontinuing, or modifying these initiatives in the 
post-COVID-19 world. 

Project Leads will bring to the attention of the Steering Committee those tactics 
highlighted in light yellow in the attachment; these are primarily tactics that either have 
not been completed or are recommended to cease implementation in the post-COVID 
world. In some cases, tactics are highlighted that have been completed and are 
recommended for continuation, but need to be reevaluated for potential adjustments 
due to COVID-19. 

Supporting Documentation Included: Initiatives in the 2025 Strategic Plan for Online 
Education: Recommendations for Continuation 
in the Post-COVID World 

Facilitators/Presenters: Chair Wilcox 

11



 02/12/2021 

[Type here] 

Steering Committee 

Initiatives in the 2025 Strategic Plan for Online Education: Recommendations for Continuation in the Post-COVID World 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/

w
or

kg
ro

up
? 

Deliverable (if 
completed) 

Ongoing 
Implementation by 

Universities/ Board (if 
completed)? 

Motions in Innovation and Online 
Committee 

Post-COVID: 
Recommend for 
Continuation by 
System and/or 
Universities? 

Implementation 
Committee/Work

-group Leads

Quality Workgroup 

1. 

Affordability 1.2.1: Co-
develop a quality 
certification system with 
its own rubric to 
measure course quality 
or invest in state-level 
licensing agreements. 

Yes 

Yes. System 
committee 
will review 
institutional 
systems for 
comparability 
to QM 
standards 

Florida Online 
Course Design 
Quality 

Yes. Universities will 
review design of online 
course using the rubric 
or its equivalent 

March 29, 2017: Motion to approve the 
recommendations from the Online Programs 
and Courses Workgroup 

Note: Relevant recommendations from the 
Online Programs/Courses Workgroup are 
below: 

Quality Course Review 
(1) In an effort to identify both quality
and high-quality online courses across the
State University System of Florida, it is
recommended that a course review process
be established with two levels of
recognition: quality and high(:)-7.7 ( q)-0.8 (u)-04409.52 T0[ivy.

(2) It is recommended that, because
some institutions may have a quality course
review process t



         02/12/2021 
 

[Type here] 
 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/

w
or

kg
ro

up
? 

Deliverable (if 
completed) 

Ongoing 
Implementation by 

Universities/ Board (if 
completed)? 

Motions in Innovation and Online 
Committee 

Post-COVID: 
Recommend for 
Continuation by 
System and/or 
Universities? 

Implementation 
Committee/Work

-group Leads 

[Designate such courses 
in FLVC course catalog, 
per Quality 1.1.2 below] 
 
 

 









 02/12/2021 

[Type here] 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/



 02/12/2021 

[Type here] 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/

w
or

kg
ro

up
? 

Deliverable (if 
completed) 

Ongoing 
Implementation by 

Universities/ Board (if 
completed)? 

Motions in Innovation and Online 
Committee 







 02/12/2021 

[Type here] 

No. Tactic 







         02/12/2021 
 

[Type here] 
 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/

w
or

kg
ro

up
? 

Deliverable (if 
completed) 

Ongoing 
Implementation by 

Universities/ Board (if 
completed)? 

Motions in Innovation and Online 
Committee 

Post-COVID: 
Recommend for 
Continuation by 
System and/or 
Universities? 

Implementation 
Committee/Work

-group Leads 

(4) Leverage and expand library resources 
to support appropriate use-cases. 

(5) Implement PR and marketing efforts to 
support eText adoption. 

 
 
August 28, 2019: Motion to approve the 
Action Plan for the Pricing of Textbooks and 
Other Instructional Materials.  
 
 

15. Quality 2.1.1: Create a 
statewide online 
education research 
consortium with 
members from Florida 
institutions interested in 
sharing and presenting 
research, determining 
research needs in online 
education, and 
identifying collaborative 
research projects. 
 

 
Yes. 

 
Yes. UF lead, 
working with 
institutions. 

 
Consortium 
created. Activities 
include: periodic 
research 
webinars; online 
research 
repository; and 
newsletter. 
Update attached. 

 
Yes. UF Lead, working 

with universities. 

 
 

Yes Andy 

16. 

Quality 2.1.2 Develop a 
process to share 
research-based best 
practices that are 
occurring across the 
different institutions. 

Yes. Yes 

Sharing occurs via 
the annual Online 
Education 
Innovation 
Summit. In 
addition,  

 
Yes. Universities 

(hosting and 
participation) 

March 29, 2017:  Motion to approve the 
recommendations from the Online Programs 



 02/12/2021 

[Type here] 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/

w
or

kg
ro

up
? 

Deliverable (if 
completed) 

Ongoing 
Implementation by 

Universities/ Board (if 
completed)? 

Motions in Innovation and Online 
Committee 

Post-COVID: 
Recommend for 
Continuation by 
System and/or 
Universities? 

Implementation 
Committee/Work

-group Leads

research-based 
best practices are 
shared through 
activities of the 
Distance Learning 
Research 
Consortium (see 
description in 
previous tactic) 

Innovation in Florida Online Learning 
(1)







 02/12/2021 

[Type here] 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/

w
or

kg
ro

up
? 

Deliverable (if 
completed) 

Ongoing 
Implementation by 

Universities/ Board (if 
completed)? 

Motions in Innovation and Online 
Committee 

Post-COVID: 
Recommend for 

Universitie:



 02/12/2021 

[Type here] 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/

w
or

kg
ro

up
? 

Deliverable (if 
completed) 

Ongoing 
Implementation by 

Universities/ Board (if 
completed)? 

Motions in Innovation and Online 
Committee 

Post-COVID: 
Recommend for 
Continuation by 
System and/or 
Universities? 

Implementation 
Committee/Work

-group Leads

25. 

Affordability 1.1.2:  
Explore additional items 
for potential sharing to 
expand the quality of the 
student online learning 
experience while 
reducing costs through 
efficiency, such as a 
Proctoring Network, 
Tutoring Network, and 
expansion of Florida 
Orange Grove shared 
resources. 

Yes 



         02/12/2021 
 

[Type here] 
 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/





         02/12/2021 
 

[Type here] 
 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/

w
or

kg
ro

up
? 

Deliverable (if 
completed) 

Ongoing 
Implementation by 

Universities/ Board (if 
completed)? 

Motions in Innovation and Online 
Committee 

Post-COVID: 
Recommend for 
Continuation by 
System and/or 
Universities? 

Implementation 
Committee/Work

-group Leads 

current shared services 
using statewide buying 
power and building 
economy-of-scale 
drivers.  Develop Florida 
SHINES as a point of 
contact for students at 
all levels, including 
students with 
disabilities, to gain 
access to vital services, 
including financial aid, 
scholarships, and library 
resources.  



         02/12/2021 
 

[Type here] 
 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/

w
or

kg
ro

up
? 

Deliverable (if 
completed) 

Ongoing 
Implementation by 

Universities/ Board (if 
completed)? 

Motions in Innovation and Online 
Committee 



         02/12/2021 
 

[Type here] 
 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/

w
or

kg
ro

up
? 

Deliverable (if 
completed) 

Ongoing 
Implementation by 

Universities/ Board (if 
completed)? 

Motions in Innovation and Online 
Committee 

Post-COVID: 
Recommend for 
Continuation by 
System and/or 
Universities? 

Implementation 
Committee/Work

-group Leads 

34. 

Affordability 4.2.1:  
Determine and define 
the elements that should 



 02/12/2021 

[Type here] 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/

w
or

kg
ro

up
? 

Deliverable (if 
completed) 

Ongoing 
Implementation by 

Universities/ Board (if 
completed)? 

Motions in Innovation and Online 
Committee 

Post-COVID: 
Recommend for 
Continuation by 
System and/or 
Universities? 

Implementation 
Committee/Work

-group Leads

online students with 
disabilities, have access 
to services equivalent to 
those used by campus-
based students. 

Recommendation: 
To re-administer the Student Services 
Scorecard in two years to track 
improvement in providing student support 
services for online students. For institutions 
to effectively improve support service 
requires time for planning and 



 02/12/2021 

[Type here] 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/

w
or

kg
ro

up
? 

Deliverable (if 
completed) 

Ongoing 
Implementation by 

Universities/ Board (if 
completed)? 

Motions in Innovation and Online 
Committee 

Post-COVID: 
Recommend for 
Continuation by 
System and/or 
Universities? 

Implementation 
Committee/Work

-group Leads



         02/12/2021 
 

[Type here] 
 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/

w
or

kg
ro

up
? 

Deliverable (if 
completed)



         02/12/2021 
 

[Type here] 
 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 





 02/12/2021 

[Type here] 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/

w
or

kg
ro

up
? 

Deliverable (if 
completed) 

Ongoing 
Implementation by 

Universities/ Board (if 
completed)? 

Motions in Innovation and Online 
Committee 

Post-COVID: 
Recommend for 
Continuation by 
System and/or 
Universities? 

Implementation 
Committee/Work

-group Leads



         02/12/2021 
 

[Type here] 
 

No. Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

w
or

k 
by

 
Im

pl
em

en
t. 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
/

w
or

kg
ro

up
? 

Deliverable (if 
completed) 

Ongoing 
Implementation by 

Universities/ Board (if 
completed)? 

Motions in Innovation and Online 
Committee 

Post-COVID: 
Recommend for 
Continuation by 
System and/or 
Universities? 

Implementation 
Committee/Work

-group Leads 



N
o. 

Tactic 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
? 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 w

or
k 

by
 

w
or

kg
ro

up
 o

r 
Sy

st
em

 c
om

m
itt

ee
? 

Deliverable (if 
completed) 

Ongoing 
Implementatio
n by 
Universities/ 
Board (if 
completed)? 

15
. 

Quality 2.1.1: Create a statewide 
online education research consortium 
with members from Florida institutions 
interested in sharing and presenting 
research, determining research needs 
in online education, and identifying 
collaborative research projects. 

 

 

 

Yes. 

 



• Trends and Issues in Online Learning Research
• Research on Flipped Classrooms in Higher Education
• Disruptive Situations: Research and Practice on Distance Teaching and Learning (Part 1

and Part 2 – both focused on rapid transition in modality to online)
• Synchronous Online Learning and Student Engagement and Success
• Research and Practice on HyFlex Learning in Higher Education

An upcoming webinar on February 26, 2021 focuses on research using learning analytics tools, 
and extending to applications of Artificial Intelligence, to understand, predict, and direct university 
student success in online education. 

Activity #2: Online Research Repository 
The Online Research Repository is a website with two primary components intended to serve 
faculty and online instructional leaders from Florida institutions.  

The first component is specifically geared to highlighting research conducted by faculty and 
distance learning leaders at Florida institutions. Faculty and staff can share research they have 
undertaken in the online education arena by uploading reports, briefs, presentations, snippets of 
code, etc. During the upload process the submitter identifies up to three keywords to characterize 
the study as well as indicators from the Quality Matters rubric. The Florida-specific component 
can connect faculty across Florida with similar research interests through self-exploration of the 
repository featuring Florida researchers. 

The second component serves as a portal to featured research reports selected by the UF group. 
Recently featured reports relevant to informing timely research and complementing the webinars 
include: 

• A Systematic Literature Review on Synchronous Hybrid Learning: Gaps Identified
• Hybrid-Flexible Course Design Implementing Student-Directed Hybrid Classes
• Review of Two Decades (1995 to 2014) of Research on Synchronous Online Learning
• An Education Crisis Is a Terrible Thing to Waste

Activity #3: Newsletter 
A periodic newsletter is sent to individuals who participated in the webinars and others who have 
requested a subscription. The communication spotlights specific research reports or briefs and 
implications for improving practice.  

Future Activities 
Communications Reinvention: We need to assess the impact and utility of the newsletter. It likely 
requires reconceptualization for maximum impact. Social media channels are likely the better way 
to approach engaging periodic communications and highlights. (short term) 

Technical Assistance: Technical Assistance for research endeavors is designed to primarily 
provide off-site services to faculty from Florida institutions interested in undertaking efforts that 
advance determining research needs, emerging research methods, external funding opportunities, 
and sharing/presenting research findings. Technical Assistance involves short-term services that 

43



can serve as a catalyst to jump-start research activities or apply new learning analytics techniques, 
for example. Possible services also might include locating qualified consultants and providing 
feedback on grant applications or reports. (long term; requires funding and personnel support) 

44









STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA 
STEERING COMMITTEE 

SUS 2025 Strategic Plan for Online Education 
February 19, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Shared Languages Program 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

PROPOSED STEERING COMMITTEE ACTION 

For Discussion 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The Shared Languages Program Task Force, the initial effort to address Affordability 
Tactic 3.1.1, was terminated in 2019 before it was able to develop and/or implement a 
strategic plan. Subsequently, the University of Florida has been called upon by in-state 
and out-of-state institutions to deliver programmatic content, particularly in the low 
demand language areas.  

The University can (or could) deliver courses or majors online in eighteen (18) different 
languages including:  

Akan Haitian Creole Modern Greek 

o f




